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(Chartered Accounlants) Board: 491 124 4252726

INDEPENDENT AUBITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Sukhsagar complexes Privale Limited
Feporton the Tnd AS Financial Statemeats

We have audiled the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Sukhbsagar complexes Private
Limited (“the Company™). which comprise the Balince Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Staicment of
Profit and Loss. including the statement of Other Comprehcusive Income. the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes v Equity for (he vear then ended. and a sunmary ol significant
accounding policies and other explinatory information.

M anage ment’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Dircclors is respensible for the maticrs stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™)with respect (o the preparation of these Ind AS finunciad statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, fimancial performance inchiding other
conyprediensive income, cash flows and changes in equily of the Company in accordance with
accoming principles gencrally aceepted in India, incliding the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS)specified under section 133 of the Act. read wilh fihe Companies {Indinn Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2005 as amended. This responsibilily also inchuides maintemance ol adeguale accounting
records in accordance with (he provisions of the Act for safeguarding of (he assels of the Company
and for preventing and detecling frauds and other tregulantics; sclkction and application of
approprialc accounting policies; making udgments and estimates (hat are rcasenable and prudent: and
the design, mplementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the accwracy and completeness of {he accounting records. elevant to the
preparation and presentation of the fnd AS Onancial slalements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatcment. whether due 1o (raud or crror.

Audilor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these Ind AS financial stalements bascd on our audil,
We have (aken mto account the provisions of the Acl. the accounting and auditing standards and
maiters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rudes made thereundey. We conducted our awdit of the standafonc Ind AS linancial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing. issued by the Tnstilute of Charlered Accountants of India.
as specified under Section H3(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with cthical
requirenents and plin and perform the awdit (o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from malerial misstalemen,

An audit involves perlonming procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the amounis and disclosures
in the financial stalcmenis. The procedures selected depend on the anditor’s judgment. incliding ihe
assessmeni of the risks of material nusstatement of the Ind AS linancial stalements, whether due lo
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the auditor considers internal financial control
refevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial stalements that give a brue and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriale in the circimnstances, An audit also inchudes
evaluating the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of (he accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Direclors. as well as evaluating the overalt presculation of the Ind
AS finaucial sialements. We believe thai the audit evidence we have obtained is suiTicicnt and
appropriaic o provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial stalcmenis,




Jain Jindal & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)

Opinion

I our opinion and fo the best of our information and according Lo the explanations given (o us, the
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Actin the mammer so requiced and
give a true and Fair view in conformity with (he accounting principles generally accepted in India. of
the stale of affairs of the Compauy as at March 310 2017, its loss including other comprehensive
income. its cash flows and the changes in cquily for the vear ended on that daic.

Report on Gthers Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(2)

{b)

(¢

()

(e)

(0

As required by the Companics (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government ol India in termns of sub-section (11) of section [43 of the Acl. we give in the
Annexuie | astalement on the maiters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we wepott thal:

We have sought and obtained all the sformation awd explinations which lo the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose ol our audi;

I our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so Far
as it appears ot our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet. Statemicnt of Profif and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statcment and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
arc in agreeinent wilh the books of account:

inour opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounding Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2013, as amended;

On the basis of wrilten represendations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and
tukenon record by {the Board of Divectors. none of the directers is disqualificd as on
March31, 2017, from being appoinicd as a direclor in {erms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the mlernal {inancial conirols over financil reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such coalrols. refer to our separate Report in
*Annexwre 27 to this report;

With respect lo the other matters to be included in the Auditer’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, i our opinion and to the best of our
infornation and according to the explanations given o us:

i The Company has disclosed the mmpact of pending litigations on its financial posilion i ils
[ndd AS linancial siatements — Refler Note 27 to the Ind AS lnancial siatements;

ii. ~The Company did not have any long-term contracts inchiding derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

il There were ne amounts which were required o be transferred (o the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,




Jain Jindal & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)

n, o The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note 34 to these Tnd AS financial
staterments as 1o the halding of Specified Bank Notes on November 8, 2016 and December
30, 2046 as well as dealings i Specilied Bank Notes during the period from November 8,
2016 1o December 30, 2016, Based on our audit procedures and relying on the manageme nt
representation regarding the holding and pature of cash fvansactions, including Specified
Bank Nalcs, we report that these disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts
miinfained by the Company and as produced (o us by (he Management.

Other Maticy

The comparative Financial information of (he Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the
transilion date openng balance sheet as at April 010 2015 included in these standalone Tnd AS
financial statcments. are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessar
auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2086 and March 31, 2015 dated June 14, 2016 and
June 15 2015 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on (hose lnancial statements. as adjusted
for the differences in (he accounting principles adopted by the Company on (ransition to the [nd AS.
which have been audited by s,

For Jain Jindal & Co.
Firm Registration No: 0258 17N
Ch;brlcrcd Accounianls ‘

e
o~

Romesh Vijay
Parlner
Membership No.: 411274
Place: New Dclhi

Date: June 14, 2017
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(Chartered Accountants) Board: +91 124 4252720

Annexure | oreferred to in paragraph I under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requivements” of our report of even daie

Re: Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited (“the Company™)

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

(v

(vii)

a) The Compmry s maintaining proper recosds showing full including quantitative details
and situation of fised assels.

b) The Company lus physically verified the fixed assefs at reasonable intervals. there
were no walerial discrepancy during the physical verification of fixed assels.

¢) The company is holding the title deeds of immovable properlics in its naie.

The management has conducled physical verificalion of inventory at reasomble intervals
dring, the vear and no material discrepancics were voliced on physical verilication,

The Company has not granted any loan to a company covered in the regisier maintained
widder section 189 of the Companics Acl. 2013, Accordingly. provisions of, clause 3(iii)
{a). (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicablk (o the Company.

The compauy has not made any loans, investinenls, guarantees, and securitics duting the
year thus the provision of cliuse 3 (iv) is nol applicable,

The Compaty has not accepled any deposits from the public in (erms of directive issued
by Reserve Bank of India and provision ol scction 73 (o 76 of (he Companics Act. 2013,

Ta the best of oor knowledge and #s exphined. the central governmenl has nol prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companics
Act 2013,

a) Undisputed statutory ducs including provident fund. employee stale insurance. labour
wellare Tund, income-lax, service tax. value added tax, cess and other material stafutory
ducs have generaily been regubirly deposiled with the appropriale authorities though there
lias been a slight delay in a few cases. The provisions related Lo excise and cusloms duty
are nat applicable (o the Company.

b) According to information and explanation given to us. there are 1o wngdispuied amounts
pavable in respect of income (ax, salos tax, wealih tax. service (ax. duotly of custors. value
added tax, excise duly cess and other material statutory dues were oulstanding for a period
ol mwore than six months from the date (hey become payable.

¢) According (o information and cxplanation given to us (here are excepl information
provided below. no dues of Income fax, sales tax, service (ax. duty of customs, value
added tax and cess which have not been depasiied on accoumni of dispule.

Particulars Amount Demanded Remarks

Service Tax 9,99,534 Appeal Pending with
commissioner {Appeals)




Jain Jindal & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)

(viiD)

(ix)

(x)

(xD)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

[ our opinion and according o information and exphimation given by the management.
{he Campany has nol delatdted in repayment ol dues 1o bunk. The Company did not have
any onlstanding ducs in respect of financial institutions or debenture hefders during (he
year.

The Company has oot raised any moneyvs by way of initial public offer or further public
offer and term loan durtng the year.

To the best of our knowledge no frand is commiticd by the company or any fraud on the
company by its officers or cmplovees has been noticed or reported during the vear.

The mawagerial remuneration has been paid or provided during the year is in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V (o the Companies Act.

The company is vol a Nidhi Company so Nidhi Rafes. 2014 are not applicable (o the
COMmpany.

Al transactions entered during the year with (he related parly are in compliance with the
provisions of sections 188 and scction 1770f Companics Act, 2013 and where applicable
and the detads with respect lo all related party transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial Statemerds as reqnired by applicable accounting standards.,

The company has made an issue of redeemable preference shares during the vear under
review and has complied with the requirements of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the amount has been used for the purpose for which the Funds were raiscd.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the director or persen
connected with director as required under section 192 of The Commpanics Act, 2013,

The company is nob required to be regisicred under section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India. 1934,

For Jain Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accomntants
[CATIFirm Regis[ra[ii)n Number: 9258 17N
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Parlner

Membership Number: 411274
Place: New Delhi

S
- e
Romesh Vijay i

o

Date; June 14, 2017
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ANMNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDBENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUKHSAGAR COMPLEXES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Tnternal Financial Controls under Chauge (i) ol Sub-section 3 of Scction 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Aect”)

We lave audiled the interpal financial conlrols over {inancial reporling of Sukhsagar Complexes
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunclion with our audit of the
stancalone financial statements of the Company for (he year ended on that dale.

M anagement’s Responsibility for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company’s mapagement is responsible for establishing and maintainmg miernat financil
conlrols based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of inernal control stated i the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the [nstitule of Charicred Accountants
of [ndia™. These responsibifities include the design, implementation and nmintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating cifectively for cnsuring the orderly and efficicnt
conduct of its busingss, including adherence lo company’s policies, the safeguarding of its asscts. the
prevention and delection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness ol the accounting
records. and the titely preparation of rekiable financial information. as required under the Companies
Acl, 2013,

Awdilors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Compaty's infernal financial conirols over financial
reporting bascd on our audit. We conducted our andit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Tnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Nole™) and the Standards on
Auditing. issued by ICAL and deemed to be prescribed ander section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extenl applicable 1o an andit of nternal fmancial controls, both applicable o an audit of
Internai Financial Controls and, both issued by (he lostitute of Chariered Accountants of India. Those
Standayds and the Guidance Note require that we comph with cthical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over [imancial reporting was esiablished and mamtained and if such controls operated effectively in all
malerial respects,

Our audit mvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
fimncial controls system over financial reporting and (heir operating effectiveness. Our audil of
internat financial controls over fimancial reporiing included obtainig an wnderstanding of inteinal
financial controls over financial reporting, asscssing the risk that & material weakness exists. and
testing and cvalwating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control bascd on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the audilor’s judgement. including the asscssment of the risks
of material misstatemerd of the financial statements. whether duc to Iraud or error.

We belicve that the awdit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate o provide a basis
for our audil opinion on the Company’s miernal fimancial controls system over Financial reporting.




Jam Jindal & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controf over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regacding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
slalements for exiernal purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles. A
compay's iternal Mancial controf over fnancial reporting includes those policies arel procedures
thal (1} pertam (0 the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and Fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the asscls of the compaiy; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
ransactions are recorded as necessary fo pormil preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepled accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of (he company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of nmnagement and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevewion or tinely detection of nnsuthorised acquisition,
use, ot disposition of the compamv’s assets that could have a nmierial effect on the [mancial
stalements,

Inhe rent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent fimitations ol internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. matcrial misstalements due o
etror or Traud may occwr and not be delecled, Also, projections of any evalmtion of the intermal
financial controls over financial reporting o Tuture periods are subject 1o the risk that the internal
financial conirol over financiaf reporting may become inadequale because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

e our opition, the Company has. v &l malerial vespects, an adequate internal Cnancial controls
system over financial cepotting and such internal Financial conirols over financial reporting weie
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on “the inlerml control over financial reporting
criterin established by the Company congidering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by (he
Institule of Chartered Accountants of India™,

For Jain Jindal & Co,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0258 17N
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Romesh Vijay i

Paitner !
Membership Number: 411274
Place: New Delhi

Date: June 14, 2017




Sulchsagar Cemplexes Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Notes Rsin lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Proporty, plant and cquipment 3 4,919.40 5,075.38 5,199.00
intangible assots 4 1.04 1.53 2.24
Financial asscts 5
Other fmancial assels 127.23 119.31 108.55
Other non-current asscts 4 . 10.14 14.30 15.51
5,057.81 5,214.52 5,325.30
Current sssets
Inventorics 7 10.19 10.08 9.89
Financial assets 8
Trade reccivables 180,66 76.55 48.14
Cush and cash cquivalents 47.21 33.65 20.10
Other financial assets 8.13 0.30 0.44
Other eurrent assels 9 2729 28.88 2642
193.48 145,46 104.99
Total Assets 5,251.29 5,359.98 5.430.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 49,50 49.50 49.50
Other equity i 76.52 213.83 405.88
Tottl equity 126.02 263.33 455,38
Liabilities
Noa-eurrent Habilities :
Financial Habilities 12
Borrowings 4,479.04 4,700.39 4,709.35
Long term provisions 13 2.10 - 158 1.53
448114 4,761.97 471088
Current liabilities
Financial liahilitics 14
Borrowings 104.00 - -
Trade payables 120.22 9346 100,80
Other financinl labilitics 381,17 b 285.54 149.98
Qther current liabilitics 15 35,90 13.45 11.32
Provisfons 13 2.84 2,23 1.93
644.13 394.68 264.03
Tatal Linbilities 5,125,27 5,096.65 4,674.51
Total Equity aad Liabilitics 5,251,29 5,359.98 5.430,29
Summary of signilicant acconnting polivics 2

‘The accompanying naotes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per eur report of even date

Fur Jain Jindal & Co.

Firm Registration No: 0258]7TH

Chartered Accountanis oy
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Romesh Vijay
Pariner
Membership No.: 411274

Place : New Dethi
Date: hme 14,2017

Tor and on behalf of the Board of Direetors of
Sukhsagar Compleyes Privdte Limited
s Eoh
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Cyrus I\\ ehernosh Madan
Direclor
Din: 02695031

Company Secretary
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SumantfIaidka

Directo
Din: 05201572




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

March 31, 2017

March 3%, 2016

Notes Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operations 16 1,165.74 1,042.35
Other income 17 1.38 0.59
Tatal Income 1,167.12 1,042.94
Lxpenses :
Cost of materials consumed 18 ’ 99,85 119.13
Employee benefits expense 19 ’ 199.31 158.72
Other expenses 20 334.22 302.61
Total expenses 633,38 580.46

533.74 462.48
Earnings before interest, fax, depreciation and amortisation {(EBITDA)
Finance costs 21 33711 577.60
Depreciation and amortization expense 22 168.66 131,70
Finance income 23 (10.44) {8.78)
Loss before tax (153.99) (238.03)
Tax expense:
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier perieds (0.62) -

(0.62) -
Luss {or the period (153.36) (238.03)
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gaing/ (Josses) on defined benefit plans {0.69 0.48
(0,49) 0.48
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising Profit /(Loss) (153.46) (237.56)
and Qther Comprehensive Inconte for the period)
Rarnings per cquily share: 24
(1} Basic (31.00) (47.99}
(2) Diluted (31.00) (47.99}
2

Sumimary of significant accounting policies
‘The accompanying netes arc an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Jain Jinds]l & Ca,
Firm Registration No: 6258 17N
Chartered Accountants
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Romesh Vijay

Partner

Membership No.: 411274
Place : New Delhi

Dale © June 14,2017

For nnd on hehalf,6f the Board of Directors of
Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited

Y "
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. Cyrus Miicrnosh Madan
Director
Din: 02695031
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Gémpany Secrelary
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Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Statement of Chanpes in Equity

A, Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subseribed and No, of shares Amount

fuily paid Rs in lalhs

At1 April 2015 495,000 49,50
Issue of share capital - -
At 31 Mareh 2016 495,000 49.50
Issue of share capital i : ) - -
At 31 March 2017 495,000 49.50

B. Other Equity
For the year ended 31 March, 2017

Reserves and Surplus
Cupital veserve | Retained Karnings [Total equity
Rs in lalhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Balance at 1 April 2015 86.13 319.75 405.88
Totul Comprehensive Income for the year - (237.56) (237.56)
Mavement during the year 45,50 ) - 45.50
Balance at 1 April 2016 131.64 82.1% 213.83
Total Comprehensive meome for the year - (153.46) (153.46)
Movement during the year 16,14 - 16.14
Balkance at 31 March 2017 147.78 (71.27) 76,52
Summary of significant accounting policics ' 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

)]
For Jain Jindal & Ceo. TFor and on be ‘.l/If/of the Board of Directors of
Fitm Registration No: 025817 Suldsagar Cgmplexes Private Limited
Chartered Accounmntsl
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Date : June 14,2017 Cdmpany Secretary



Sulkhzagar Complexes Private Limited
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2017

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Rs in Jakhs Rs in lakhs
Operating activities )
Loss before tax {153.99) (238.03)
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(foss) before tax Lo rict cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 160.66 131.70
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (10.04) (8.78)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financlal instruments} 532.43 572.56
Provision for gratuity 0.66 .48
Provision for leave encashment 0.38 0.29
Excess provision/ crodit balances written back 0.90 -
Provision for doubtful debts 0.09 0.79
531.09 456,01
Working Capital Adjustment:
Change in trade receivables ) (24.21) (29.21)
Change in loans and advances and other current assets (4.12) - {4.30)
Change in inventories (0.10) {0.19)
Change in liabilities and provisions ' 51.95 {3.58)
554.61 421.73
Income tax paid (net of refunds) 4,78 1,21
Net cash flow from operating activities ‘ 559.39 422,94
Tnvesting activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (4.19) 7137
Net Cash flow used in investing activitics {4.19) {1.37)
Finxnceing activities
Proceeds from issue of compund financiai instruments 90.00 250.00
Proceeds from long term borrowing - (120.00) (90,19
Interest paid (511.64) {555.83)
Net Cash from financing activities (541.64) {402.02)
Net increase{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13.56 13.55
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33.65 26.10
_Cash and eash equivalents af the end of the year 47.21 33.65
Components of cash and cash equivalents
{Zash on hand 1.28 3.34
3alances with banks in
- current accounts 45.93 30,31
‘Total eash and cash cquivalents . 47.21 33.65

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

As per our report of even date

the Board of Directors of
ces Private Limited

For Jain Jindal & Co. For and on behalf
Firm Registration No: 0258 17N Sukhsagar Compl

Charlered Accountants
7
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ot fod Cyrus Mchdynosh Madan Sumant] Jaidk:
Romesh Vijay Director Director
Din: 02695031 Din: 05201572

Partner
Membership No.: 411274

i

Place : New Dethi /A ora
Date : June 14,2017 Company Secrelary




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

1.

2.1

2.2
(a)

Corperate Information

Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India
and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the company is located at B-6/17, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi-110029.

The principal activities of the Company is to carry out business of developing, owning,
acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc,

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 14% June 2017,

Basis of preparation
Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) netified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP), These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the
first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 31 for information
on how the Company adopted Ind AS,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost or at amortised cost except
for the following assets and liabilities:

s Net defined benefit (asset)/liability
» Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated

Summary of significant accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Al other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

» It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

s It is due to be settled within twel nths after the reporting period, or




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited :
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

(d

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the higrarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The
management selects external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management
decides, after discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques
and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
Habilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Valuation Committee verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine

whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
fevel of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes, ‘

e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 2.2(m), 25)
« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy {note29)
o Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost) (note 29)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather,
it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.
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» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting pefiod

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and Habilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Fareign currency
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investment in mutual funds at fair
value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
» Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
obsetvable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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Rooms, Restaurant, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT) and Luxury Tax. Shortfall of revenue over the billed as at the year-end is carried
in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax/ VAT,

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance
income in the income statement.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds

Gain/(loss) on sale of investment in mutual funds is recorded as other income on fransfer of
title from the Company and is determined as the difference between the redemption price and
carrying value of the investments.

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity)., Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate,

Deferved tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Kability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset o be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate fo the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and
equipment.

Freehold land is carried at revalued cost as at transition date. Capital work in progress, plant
and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful life of fixed assets as follows:
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Fixed Assets Useful life considered

(SLM)
Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Building 60 Years
Elecirical installations and fittings 10 Years
Office Equipment’s 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 Years

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building,
plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used. '

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial vear end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

" Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life.
All intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

Costs relating to acquisition of initial software license fee and installation costs are capitalized
in the year of purchase.

Software costs are amortized using the straight line method over their useful lives estimated
by the management at three years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.
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Borrowing cests

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value, Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business fess
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
disposal and its value in use, The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, & long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year, To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most trecent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net 6f depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
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prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive}
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is vittually certain, The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, “the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has ‘no obligation, other than the coniribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recoghizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for scrvice
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term

© compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation

is done as per projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comptising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included i net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
o The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
s Net interest expense or income
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The company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current Hability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the repotting date. Where Company has the unconditional
legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is amy contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
tecorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:

» Debt instruments at amortised cost

o Debt insiruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

* Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,
loans to subsidiaries etc. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 8.

Debt instrument at FVITOCI
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A debt instrument is classified as at the EVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL,

Debt instraments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument
is reported as interest income using the EIR method,

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)} the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated lability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
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measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to
as ‘contractual revenue receivables’ in these illustrative financial statements)

e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment foss allowance on:

¢ Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
¢ All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17 .

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expecied credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shorifalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is
required to consider;

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument, However,
in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

¢ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
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reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCL: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments int an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial Habilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss, Financial labilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading ave recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Company may transter the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, inferest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as

finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For.more information refer Note 12,
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Financial guarantee contracis

The Company has issued financial gnarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of loan
facilities availed by its group companies. In accordance with the policy of the Company the
Company has designated such guarantees as ‘Insurance Contracts’. The Company has
classified financial guarantees as contingent liabilities, Accordingly, there are no assets and
liabilities recognized in the balance sheet under these contracts other than those related to
commission income recognized and/or receivable from such group companies as disclosed in

note 28.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the group Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the guarantee holder for a loss it incurs because the
Company fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantees issued by the group Company on behalf the Company are

designated as ‘Insurance Contracts’,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shates or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. Afier initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are
equity instruments and financial labilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent, The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses

{including impairment gains or losses) or interest.
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(n)

(0)

(p)

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
Cost gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on

the new gross carrying amount.
Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date,

Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCL No change in EIR due
to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost  carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if
it had always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes iis new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCIE FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle ont a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Redeemable Preference Shares

Redeemable Preference Shares are separated into liability and equity components based on
the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the Redeemable preference shares, the fair value of the lability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial Hability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash af banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments

The management of the Company reviews the specific performance of its respective hotel
properties. However, since all hotels have similarity in terms of products and services,
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()]

()

customer classes, method of providing services and the regulatory environment, the
individual hotels qualify for aggregation. Thus, the management has considered aggregating
all the hotels as one reportable operating segment. Accordingly, the figures appearing in these
financial statements relate to the Company’s single operating segment.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective. The Ministry of Corporate Affairg
(MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017
and has amended the following standard.

Amendment te Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

The amendments to Ind AS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. On initial application
of the amendment, entities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2017. Application of this amendments will not have any recognition and measurement impact.
However, it will require additional disclosure in the financial statements.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
statements is being evaluated.

Amendment to Ind AS 102, Share-based Payment
The MCA has issued amendments to Ind AS 102 that address three main areas: the effects of

vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction, the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with- net settlement features for

- withholding tax obligations, and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions

of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity
settled. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017.
The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial
statements is being evaluated. The Company will adopt these amendments from their
applicability date.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
interest income, finance costs and tax expense.
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- Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

5 Tinancial assets March 31,2017 March 31, 2016  April 1, 2015

Rs in lakhs Rs in [akhs _ Rsin Iakhs
(a} Other financial assets
Security deposits 11.68 11,28 5.46
Non current bank balances _ 79.52 79.52 82.08
Interest accrucd on Non current bank balances 36.03 28.51 21.01
127,23 119.31 108.55

Break up of non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Security deposits 11.28 5.46
Non current bank balances 79.52 82.08
Interest accrued on Non current bank balances 28.51 21.01

Total non-current financial assets carried at amortised cost 119.31 108.55
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6

Other non-current assets Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in fakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance income tax (nct of provision for taxation) 10.14 14.30 15.51
14.30 15.51

Total 10.14

Note ; The Company has ineuired losses during current year further there is no reasenable certainity that the Company will earn taxable profits

in future vears. Accordingly deferred tax not accounted on losses and unabsorbed depreciation.

Inventories March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
(valued at lwver of cost and net realisable value) Rs in lalkhs Rs i lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages (excluding liguer and wine} ] 2.60 2.17 3.0¢
Liquor and wine . 0.99 1.10 1.01
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 6.85 6.81 5.80
10.45 10.08 9.89
Less: Provision for slow moving/ nen moving stock 0,26 - -
10.08 9.89

Total 10.19
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8

(M)

(i)

Financial assets March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Trade receivables

Trade receivables 100.66 76.55 48.14
100.66 76.55 48.14

Break-up for security details:

Trade receivables :

Secured, considered good - - -
Unsceured, considered good 101,35 77.34 48.14

Doubiful - - “
101.55 77.34 48.14

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Unsecured, considered good ‘ 0.89 0.79 -
Doubtful ' ' A - - -

: 0.89 0.79 -
Total Trade receivables 100,66 76.55 48.14

Trade reccivables are nen-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April i, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Balance with banks

On current credit accounts 45,93 30.31 15,94
Cash on hand 1.28 334 4,16
47.21 33.65 20.10

At March 31, 2017, the Company had available Rs. Nil (March 31, 2016: Rs. Nil, April 1, 2015: Nil) of undrawn
committed borrowing facilities.
Cash at bank are non-interest bearing financial assets.

For the purpese of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprisc the following:

- March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Particulars
Balances with banks
on current accounts 45.93 30.31 15.94
Cash on hand 1,28 3.34 4.16

Total cash and cash cquivalents 47.21 33.65 20.10
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(ifi} Other financial asscts

Scourity deposits
Unbilled revenue

Break up of current financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables
Cash and cash cquivalents
Total current financial assets carried at amortised cost

9  Other current assets
Otlicrs

Advance for supply of poods and rendering of services
Subsidy recoverable

Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid expenses

March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2016  April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

- 0.30 0.44
8.13 - -
8.13 0.30 0.44
100.66 76.55 48.14
47.21 33.65 20.10
147.87 110.20 68.24
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

s in lakhs

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

1.62 0.85 1.67
2.80 2.80 2.30
2,07 5.15 3.40
20,80 20.08 18.56
27.29 28.88 26.42
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10 Equity share capital

Authorised Share Capital

Atf April 2015
Increase/{idecrease) during the year
At 3% March 2010
Increase/(decrease) duting the year
AL3E March 2057

Ferms/rights attached to equity shares

Equity shares
No. ol shares Hs in lakhs

500,000 5¢.00
500,000 50.0¢
500,000 50.06

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10 per share, Each holder of equily shares is entitled to one vole per share. fn the event of
liquidition ol the company, the holdezs ol equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferentinl smounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equily shares held by the sharcholders,

The Preference shaves are not eenvertible into equity shares and are reflected in financial liabilites

Issued equity capilal

Equity shares af INR 10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid

At 1 April 2015
Increase/(decrease) during the year
At 31 Mareh 2016

Increase/(decrense) during the year
At 31 Mazrch 2017

Shares held hy holding company

Eyaity shares of Re. {0 each fully paid up
Lemon T'ree Hotels Limiled

N, of shares Rs in lakhs

495,000 46.50
445,000 49.50
455,000 49.50

March M, 2017
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

Na. of shares Rs in lakhs

No. of sharcs B in Inkhs

495,000 49.50

Details of sharehnlders holding mere than 5% shares in the company

Equity shares of Re. 10 cach fully paid up
Lemon Tree Holels Limnited

495,000 49.50

Nuo.of shares % held as at March
31,2087

No. of shares % held as at March
31,2016

495,000 100.00%

495,000 100.00%

The Company has not issued Bonus Share, Share for consideration other than Cash and has not bought back shares during the peried of five years immediately

preceding the reporting date.

11 Other equily
Relained Enrnings*®

At 1 April 2015
Profitfloss) for the year
A1 31 Marel 2016
Profit/{loss) for the year
At 31 March 24017

Rs in Eakhs

319.73

(237.563
82.1%
(153.46

(71.27}

* inlcudes Revaluation Reserve of Rs, 1500 Inkhs Insferred to retained eamings o the date of transition {i.e April 1,2015) from IGAAP 1o Ind AS

Capital Reserve( Equity Component of Redeemabie Preference Shares)

At 1 April 2015
Increase/{decrease) during the year
At 31 March 2046
Increasc/{decrease) during the year
At 31 Murch 2017

Other reserves
Relained Earnings
Capilal Reserve

Rs in lakhs

86.13
45.50
13064
16.14
147,78

March 31,2617 March 31,2016 April 1,2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(7827 82.1¢% 319.75

147,78 131.64 86.13

405.88

76.52 213.83
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Borrowings
Non-current barrawings

Ferm Loans
Indian rupee loans frem Banks {Secured)
Ratmakar Bank (Refer note 1 below)

Liability eompanent of compound lancial instrument
Redeemable preference shares {(unsecured) (Refer Note 2 helow)
Total nan-enzrend borrowings

Current berrewings

Ferm Loans

Current materify ol long term loans
Rutnakar Bunk (Refer note 1 below)

Total current borrowings

Less: Amount elubled under “ether corrent liabilities™
Net current burrowlogs

Term loans

1.} Rupee term loan of Rs 4500 lakhs from Ratnakar Bank was avatled during financial year 2013-14. The Loan is

%
Lffective Rute of Maturity March 38,2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Interest (%) s in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhis
12.85% 2023-2024 3,830.1% 4,138.72 4,361.88
5.00% 2024-2026 648.87 361.67 34141
4,479.04 4,700.39 4,709.35
© 12.85% 2023-2024 316.00 224.00 90.0¢
316.00 224.00 90.08
(316.00) (224,00) (90.00)

repayable in 32 guarterly installments stzminj;: from Dec'l5. The Loan is sccured by 2

exclusive charge en all the movable fixed assets of the company sttunted al Khasra No.162/103/433, Village Jhalana , JLL.N, Marg , Jaipur, exclusive charge on the current assets of Company's hotel
including book debts, operating eash flows, intagible revenues both present and future and exclusive charge by way of equilable morigage cver land and building of company’s hotel ( cross collateralised
with the exposure granled 1o Canary Hotels Pvi, Ltd ) and exclusive charge o8 the property ot EDM mall, Enst Delhi, built on Plot ne. 1, Kaushambi, Ghazinbad ( eross cullateralised with the exposure
granted to Canary Hotels Pvi, Ltl ). Turlier it is secured by Coporats Guarantee of parest colmpany.

2.) Liability component of compound finaneial instriument represent 5% Redeemable Preference Sharcy, These shares are non-cumulative, non-convertible, non-participating and shal? varry a preferential
right, vis-d-vis Equity Shares of the Company, with respect 1o payment of dividend and repayment in case ol a winding up or repayment of capital and shall carry voting tights a5 per the provisions off

Seclion 47(2) of the Act.

The 5% Redeemabile Preference Shares will be redesmed (7) at par, {b) cither at Company's option or Shareholder's option and (6) anytime after expiry of one (1) yeer but on or before expiry of ten {10) .
years from e date of allotment of the preference shares or on such other tenms as varied a¢ per the provistens ef Seotion 48 of the Act,

Trovisions

Provision Tor gratuity
Curtent
Nen-currenl

Proviston for leave benefits
Current

Talnl current
Tolal non-current

March 31, 2617 March 31, 2016 April I, 2015
Rsinlakhs Rs in Jakhs Rs in fakhs
.75 200 1.94
0.65 042 641
210 158 1.53
1.19 1.81 1.52
119 1.81 .52
2.84 223 193
2,10 1.58 1,53
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@

(i)

(i)

Financini liabilities

Borrowings

Loan frem holding company {refer note below)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
R in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

104.00 - -

104.00 - -

Note - Loan from holding company is non interest bearing and is repayable on demand

Trade payaliles

Trade Payables

-Micre and smail enterprises

-Other than Micro and smali enterprises
Trade payables to related parties

Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Book averdraft

Outstanding dues of employees
Ouistanding dues of other eredilors

Other current liabilifics

Advance received front customers
Statutory liabilities

March 31,2017 March 31,2016 Aprit 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs s in lakhs
119.61 93.46 100.80
0.60 - -
120,22 93.46 100.80

March 31, 2017

March 31, 20106

April 1, 2015

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
316.00 224,00 90.00
- - 0.26
15.10 13.69 12.16
50,07 47.86 47.56
381.17 285.54 149,98
Mareh 31,2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs Rsin lakhs
29.97 10.56 787
5.92 2.89 3.45
35.90 13.45 11.32
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16 Revenue frpm operations

Sale of products and services
Room renlal
Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine)
Liyuor and wine
Telephene and telex
Other services
Commission income

17 Othker iacome

Salo of scrup
Excess provision/ credit balances writton back
Exchange min net

18 Cost of materials consumed

March 31, 2017
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2014
Rs in fakhs

874,07 77477
183,94 175.94
14,50 1297
1,82 2.41
41,40 7641
0.01 0.14
1,165.74 1,042.35
.March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Rs ir lakhs -

Rs in lakhs

() Cousumption of food & heverages excluding liguor & wine

Inventery at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchuses

Less: Inventory at (he end of the year
Cost of food and beverage consumerd

(b} Consumptian of liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at {he end of the year
Cost of liquor and wine consumed

—
RS

timployee benelit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribulion 1o provident fund and other lunds
Gratuity expense

Staff wellure expenses

0.3% 0,59
.00 -
0.0% -
1.38 0.5%
March 31, 2017 Marcl: 31,2016
Rs in Inkhs Rsin lakhs
2,17 3.09
95.28 114.40
97.46 117.49
.60 2,17
9445 115.32
110 1.01
4.89 190
5.98 4.90
0.99 110
4.99 381
099,85 119.13
March 31,2017 March 31,2016

Rs in laklis

Rs in lakhs

158.24 138.52
8.17 7.73
.66 0.64

32,25 11.82

19931 15R.72
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20 Other expenses

2

Consumption of stores, cutlery, ereckery, linen, previsions und olhers

Power and fue!

Linen , uniform washing and laundry c.'tpcuscs
Guest transportalion expenses
Subscription charges

Repair and maintenance expenses

- Buiklings

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Rent expenses

Rates and taxes

Insurance cxpenses

Communication cosls

Printing and slalionery expenses
Traveling and conveyance-

Adverlising and sales promotion
Commission -other than sole selling agent
Security and cleaning expenses
Membership and subseriptions

Lepal and professional expenses

Provision for doubtful debt, losns, advances efe,

Payment 1o auditers

Provision for slow/non moving, inventory
Equipment hire charges

Miscellineous expenses

Payment to auditor
As auditor
{or olher services

Finance costs

Inlerest
- on term loans from banks
- on others

Bank charges (including commission en credit card collection)

March 31, 2617
Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2016
Rs in lakhs

17,59 16.71
107,41 07.88
26.67 2827
6.66 7.79
3.28 4.92
14,19 2.05
7.31 571
28.18 19.73
2.54 2.44
26,36 16,09
2,60 2,26
11,96 11.83
6,48 5.7
5,68 9.51
17,36 19.69
7.21 171
24.86 2126
G.05 0.58
.07 536
' 0.09 0.79
0.25 0.60
0.26 -
7.53 12.12
311 2.52
334.22 302.61
$.25 0.50
- 0.10
{25 .66
Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

s in lakhks

Rs in lakhs

519.09 562.85
13,41 971
4.01 5.04
537.11 S$77.60
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22 Deprecintion and amerlization cxpense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets

23 Fisance Income

Intgrest lncome on ;
- Interest an income tux refund
-Sceurity deposits receivable

24 Earnings per share (Baste and Diluted)

March 31,2017

Muarch 31,2016
Rs in lzkhs

Rsin lakhks

160,18 130,45
0.48 1.25
160.66 131.70
Mareh 31,2017 March 31, 2016

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

8.36 8.34
1.69 0.44 .
1104 8,78

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average

number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts arc calcutated by dividing the prelil attzibutable 1o equity holders of the compuny by the weighted average number of
Equity sharcs outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all (he

dilutive petential Hquity shares into Lguity shares,

The fellowing data refleets the inputs to caleulation of basic and diluted EPS

Profit / (loss) after fax
Profit / {Less) for calenlation of basic and diluted EPS

Weighted average rumber of Equity shares for basic EPS
Weighled average number of Equity shares adjusted for the offect of dilution
Weighted average number of equity shares in calenlating diluted EPS

Basic and diluied KPS

AMareh 31, 2017
Rs In lakhs

March 31, 2016
Rs in Jakhs

(237.56)

(153.46)

(153.46) (237.56)

495,000 495,000

155000 295,000
(L0 47.99)
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25,

Significant accounting judgements; estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against
the Company, including legal, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will
be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of the existence, and potential guantum, of contingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future
events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncettainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

Fair value measurement of financial instrumenis

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
other valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments,
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are
derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used
for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective
country

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 20

26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

Rs. In
lakhs
March 31,2017 March 31,2016 April 1,2015
Gratuity plan 2.75 2.00 1.94

Total 275 2.00 1.94

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan . The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary
at retirement age.The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of
accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per ojected unit credit method.
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Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 3§, 2017:

Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains/{losses) in other comprehensive income

Rs. In Icr.'ch-s

Return on . :
. Net  included (excluding chang chang . - March
. Service R arising from arising from  Experience total Contributions
April 1, 2016 interest in profit amonunis - . s . ,
cost . ; changes in changes in adjustments  included by employer
cxpense  or loss included in . . . 2017
. demographic financial . in OCI
net interest h N
assumptions assumptions
expense)
Delined
benefit
obligation 2.00 0.51 .15 0.66 - - 0.08 0.01 0.89 - 2.5
Fair value '
of plan
assets - - - - - - - - - - -
Benefit
linhility 2.00 0,51 0,13 0.66 0.08 0,01 0.09 - 275




Sukhsagar Complexes Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2016:

Gratuity cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income Rs. In lakhs
Return on " -
. Service | Net l_ncluded Benefits (excluding arising frem  arising from  Experience total Contributions March
Aprii 1, 2015 interest in profit . amounts . . . . | '
ost d . M changes in changes in adjustments included by emplayer
expense  or loss incloded in . X . 2016
\ demographic financiai in OCI
net interest h s
assumpfiions assumptions
expense) :
Defined
benefit
obligation 1.94 0.49 0.15 0.64 (0.10) - - 0.01 (048) (0.48) - 2.00
Fair value
of plan
assets - - - - - - - - - - - -
Benefit

liability 1.94 0.49 0.15 0.64 0.10) - - 0.01 {0.48) (0.48) - 200
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The principal assumpﬁons used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown

below:
BDiscount rate:
Pension plan

Future salary increases:
Pension plan

Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65:

Pension plan
Male
Female

March 31,2017 March 31,2016  April 1,2015

%

6.70%

5.00%

Years

60
60

%o %
7.60% 7.70%
5.00% 5.00%

Years Years

60 60

60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2017 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

Assumptions

Sensitivity Level

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

March 31, March 31,
2017 2017

March 31, March 31,
2017 o 2017

Discount rate

1% increase 1% decrease

Future salary increases

1% increase 1% decrease

(0.09) 0.09

March 31, March 31,
2016 2016

0.09 1(0.09)

March 31, March 31,
2016 2016

Discount rate

1% increase 1% decrease

Future salary increases

1% increase 1% decrease

(0.07) 0.07

0.07 (0.07)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on

defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable_chan

the reporting period.

S

ges in key assumptions occurring at the end of
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The following payments are expected contributions fo the defined benefit plan in future yeats:

Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
1 0.67 0.44
2 0.59 0.36
3 0.46 0.36
4 0.39 0.32
5 0.33 0.28
Above 5 1.09 0.96
Total expected payments 3.54 271

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting petiod is 5 years

(March 31, 2016: 5 years).

27. Commitments and contingencies

a. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2017, the Company had NIL commitments (March 31, 2016: Rs NIL, April 1, 2015: Rs

NIL)
h. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Rs. Inlakhs

As at April, 2015

As at March | As at March
31,2017 31,2016
a. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of
guarantees issued by company’s bankers 33.60 33.60 33.60
b. |Guarantees given on behalf of fellow subsidiary 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
¢. |Inrespect of Service Tax Demand under appeal 10.00 10.00 10.00
d. |Inrespect of matters pending with consumer 2275 9975 2975

courts (refer note below)

Note - The Company has been advised by its legal counsel that it is only possible, but not probable, that
the action will succeed. Accordingly, no provision for any liability has been made in these financial

statements.
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28. Related Party Transactions

a) Names of related parties where control exists itrespective of whether transactions have occurred

Holding company ' Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Fellow subsidiary companies Canary Hotels Private Limited
Oriole Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Key Management Personnel My, Sumant Jaidka (Director)

Mr. Cyrus Mehernosh Madan (Director)

b) Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during
the year:

Company Secretary Mr, Anurag Arora (CS)
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related

parties for the relevant financial year

{Rs. in Lakhs.)

. Ke

Transactions with Related Party EYear Holding Fel’Iolw Managgment

nded Company Subsidiary Person

Amount received by the party on

Company Behalf

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 137 - -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Canary Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 - 0.06 -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Amount received by the company

on behalf of Party

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 0,59 - -
31-Mar-16 0.05 - -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Sillii)iltee c]1)r fresh Hotels Private 31-Mar-17 ) oo i
31-Mar-16 - - -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Loans (taken) _

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 104.00 - -
31-Mar-16 47.00 - -
01-Apr-15 174.00 - -

Loan (Repaid)

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 47.00 - -
01-Apr-15 360.67 - -

Collection of amount received by

the party

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 2.38 - -

01-Apr-15
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Oricle Dr Fresh Hotels Private

Limited 31-Mar-17 ) - -
31-Mar-16 - 0.15 -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Canary Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - - -
31-Mar-16 - 0.06 -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Renumeration Paid

Mr.Anurag Arora 31-Mar-17 - - 1.44
31-Mar-16 - - -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Subscription in preference share

capital of the Company

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 90.00 - -
31-Mar-16 250.00 - -
01-Apr-15 430.00 - -

Guarantee Received

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 4,500.00 - -
31-Mar-16 4,500.00 - -
01-Apr-15 4,500.00 - N

Guarantee Given

Canary Hotels Private Limited 31-Mar-17 - 2,500.00 -
31-Mar-16 - (2,500.00) -
01-Apr-15 - (2,500.00) -

Balance Outstanding at year end

Lemon Tree Hotels Limited 31-Mar-17 104,59 - -
31-Mar-16 - - -
01-Apr-15 - - -

Sillﬁltz (1131 Fresh Hotels Private 31-Mar-17 ) oco )
31-Mar-16 - - -

01-Apr-15
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and
settlement occurs in cash, For the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has not recorded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2016: Rs INR Nil,
April 1, 2015: Rs Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the
financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates,

Commitments with related parties

The company has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

29, Fair value measurement

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of
fair values

Rs. In lakhs

Carrying value Fair value

31-Mar-17  31-Mar-16  0l-Apr-13  31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15

Financial assets

Other Financial

135.36 119.61 108.99 135.36 119.61 108.99
Assets
Trade Receivable 101,55 7134 48.14 100.66 76.55 48.14
Cash and cash 4721 33.65 20.10 4721 33.65 20.10
equivalent
Total 284.12 230.60 177.22 283,24 229.81 177.22
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,702,77 4,818.45 4,792.32 4,583.04 4,700.39 4,709.35
Trade Payable 120,22 93.46 100.80 120,22 93.46 100.80
Other financial
liabilities 381.16 285.54 149.98 381.16 285.54 149.98

Total 5,204.15 5,197.45 5,043.10 5,084.42 5,079.39 4,960.13
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a. Financial instruments by category

Rs. In lakhs
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
EVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost
Financial Assets !
Trade receivables - 100.66 - 76.55 - 48.14
Cash and cash
equivalents - 47,21 - 33.65 - 20.10
Other financial assets ) 135.36 . 119.61 i 108.99
Total Financial Assets } 283.24 : 290.81 i 177.22
Rs. In lakhs
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost Cost
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings ; 4,583.04 : 4,700.39 . 4,709.35
Trade payables - 120.22 - 93.46 - 100.80
Other financial liabilities } 381.17 ) 285.53 . 149.98
Total Financial
Liabilities - 5,084.43 - 5,079.40 - 4,960,13

30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to
support its operations. The Company's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash & cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Company. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, deposits and payables/receivables in foreign currencies.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fiture cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure fo the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-terin debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company is carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company
expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company is currently carrying its loans at variable
inferest rates.

Rs. In Lakhs
March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 | April 1, 2015
Variable rate borrowings 4,146.17 4,362.72 4,451.88
Fixed rate borrowings 752.87 561.67 34747

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held
constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as

follows:

Rs, In lakhs
Increase/decreas Effect on profit
e in basis peints before tax
31-Mar-17
50 21.24
-50 (21.24)
31-Mar-16
50 22.93
-50 (22.93)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreigh exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables and Security Deposits

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the Company's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of each customer is assessed and credit
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and security deposits
are regularly monitored,

An impairment analysis is performed for all major customers at each reporting date on an individual basis, In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous group and assessed for
impairment collectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 5. The Company
evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in
several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.
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Liguidity risk .

The company's principal source of liquidity is cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is
generated from operations. The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes
that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is
perceived

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had a working capital of Rs. (450.66) lakhs including cash and
cash equivalents of Rs. 47.21 lakhs. As of March 31, 2016, the Company had the Company had a
working capital of Rs (245.22) lakhs including cash and cash equivalents of Rs 33.65 lakhs.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including loans to
related parties, deposits with banks and financial institations and other financial instruments.

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business location subject to the Company's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a
customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in
terms of number of days and amount.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 29. The Company does not hold collateral as
security.

(b) Financial instraments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury
department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2017 and 31
March 2016 is the carrying amount as illustrated in Note 29.
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Gross carrying amount of trade receivables

Rs. In lakhs
Ageing March 31, March 31, March 31,
2017 2016 2015
Not due - - -
0-60 days past due 89.69 59,65 38.40
61-120 days past due 4.38 11,90 6.93
121-180 days past due 2.90 0.89 1.46
180-365 days past due 0.96 .04 0.18
365-730 days past due 1.22 1.95 1.16
more than 730 days 1.52 1.12 -

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Rs. In lakhs

Ageing March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 | March 31, 2015
Gross carrying amount 101.55 77.34 48.14
Expected credit losses 0.89 0.79 -
Carrying amount of trade receivables 100.66 760.55 48.14
(net of impairment)
Reconciliation of impairment of trade receivables
Loss allowance on 1 April 2015 -
Changes in loss allowance 0.79
Loss allowance on 31 March 2016 0.79
Changes in loss allowance 0.09
Loss allowance on 31 March 2017 0.89

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The
Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafis, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the
concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has
access to a sufficient variety of sources of fundmg and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled

over with existing lenders.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual discounted payments,

Rs. In lakhs
On Less than 3 3to12 1te 5 >3
Total
demand months months years years

Year ended

3i-Mar-17

Borrowings(Other than

preference share) 104.00 - 31600 334800 48217 425017

Trade and other payables 120.22 - - - - 120.22

Other financial Habilities 65.16 - - - - 65.16
289.38 - 316.00  3348.00 482.17 4,43555

Year ended

31-Mar-16

Borrowings(other than

preference share) - . 22400 2,620.00 151872 4362.72

Trade and other payables 93.46 - - - - 93.46

Other financial liabilities 61.53 - - - - 61.53
155.00 - 224.00 2,620.00 1,518.72 4,517.71

Year ended

1-April-15

Borrowings(other than

preference share) . R 90.00 1,800.00 2,561.88 4,451.88

Trade and other payables 100.80 - - - - 100.80

Other financial liabilities 59.98 - - - - 59.98

160.77 - 90.00 1,800.00 2,561.88 4,612.66

31. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. .

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total
capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.
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Rs. In lakhs

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 _01-Apr-15
Rs. Rs. Rs.

Borrowings (other than preference share) 4,250.17 4,362.72 4,451.88

Trade payables (Note 14) 120.22 93.46 100.80
Other financial liabilities (Note 14) 381.16 285.53 146.98
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 8) 47.20 33.65 20.10
Net debt 4,704.35 4,708.06 4,682.56
Total capital(including preference share) 774.89 825.01 47349
Capital and net debt 5,479.23 5,533.07 5,156.04
Gearing Ratio 86% 85% 91%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
“ended March 31, 2017 and 31 March 2016.

32, First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial stalements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Company has prepared
in accordance with Ind AS, For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable
for periods ending on 31 March 2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year

- ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the
Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April
2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first~time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions:

« Property Plant & Equipment - As permitted by IND AS 101, the Company has elected to
continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant &
equipment. The Same selection has been made in respect of Intangibles Assets. The Carrying
value of property plant and equipment as aforesaid are after making adjustments relating to
decommissioning Habilities '

Estimates

The estimates at 1 April 2015 and at 31 March 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates
in accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences’in accounting policies)
apart from impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model where application of
Indian GAAP did not require estimation,
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Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 {(date of fransition to Ind AS)

Rs. In Lakhs

March 31,2016 April 1,2015
Local GAAP Adjustment Ind AS Local GAAP Adjustment Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-carrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 5,075.38 - 5,075.38 5,199.00 - 5,199.00
Tntangible assets 1.53 B 1.53 2.4 - 2.24
Financiai asscts .
Other financial assets 11931 11931 108.55 - 108.55
Oller non-curresnt assets 14.30 - 14,30 15.51 - 15.51
5,210.52 - 5,210.52 5,325.28 “ 5,325.28
Current assets
Inventories 10.08 - 10,08 .80 - 9.89
Financial assets
Trade receivables 77.34 (0.79) 76.55 48,14 - 48,14
Cash and Cash equivalents 33.65 u 33.65 20.10 - 20,10
Other financial assets 0.30 - 0.30 044 - 0.44
Other current assels 28.88 - 28.88 26.43 - 26,43
150,25 (0.79) 149,45 105.00 - 105,00
Total Assets 5,360.77 (0.79) 5,359.98 5,430,28 - 5,430.28
LEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 49,50 - 49.50 49,50 49.50
Other Equity 96.56 117.27 213.83 309N $2.97 405.88
Total Equity 146.06 117.27 263.33 372,42 82,97 455.38
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March 31,2016 . April 1,2018
Local GAAP Adjustment Ind AS Local GAAP Adjustment Ind AS

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financia] liabilities
Borrowings 481845 (118.06) 4,700.39 4,792.32 (82.97) 4,709.35
Lonp tezm provisions 1,58 - 1.58 1.53 - 1.53

4,820,03 (118.06) 4,701,597 4,793.85 (32.97) 4,710,88
Curreat liabilities
Tinancial liabilities
Trade payables 9346 - 93,46 100.80 - 100.86
Other financial liabilities 285.53 - 285.53 14908 - 14998
Other current liabilities 13.45 - 13.45 11.32 g 11.32
Provisiens 2.23 - 223 1.93 - 1.93

394,68 - 394,68 264.02 - 264.02
Total Liabilitics 521491 (115.06) 5,096.65 5,057.87 (82.97) £,974.90
Total Equity and Liabilitics 5,360.77 {0.7%) 5,359,98 5,430.28 {0.60) 5,430.28
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Reconciliation of retained earnings as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 (date of transition to

Ind AS)
Retained
Retained Profit for the earnings Profit for
Particulars earnings (Mar 15) year {Mar 16) the year
Balance as per Indian GAAP (1,177.08) (226.35) (1,403.44) (138.89)
Opening Ind AS Current year Current year
BS adjustments adjustments Total adjustments
Add ¢
Less:
On account of transaction cost
amortisation 0.44 (0.70) (0.26) (1.13)
On account of split accounting of
Redeemable Preference Shares (3.61) (9.71) (13.31) (13.34)
On account of provision for
expected credit losses {0.79) (0.7%) (0.09)
On account of on reclassification
from revaluation reserve to
retained earnings 1,500.00 1,500.00
Total Deducted 1,496.83 1.2 1,485.63 (14.56)
Net impact 1,496.83 (11.21) 1,485.63 (14.56)
Balance as on 31st March 2016
as per Ind AS 319.75 {237.56) 82.19 (153.46)
Balance as per Note No.11 319.75 (237.56) 82.19 (153.46)
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Reconciliation of statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

Rs. In lakhs
Particulars Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue From Operations 1,042.35 - 1,042,335
(Other Income 0.59 - 0.59
Total Income 1,042.94 - 1,042.94
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 119.13 - 119.13
Employee benefits expense 158.24 0.48 158.72
Other expenses 101.83 0.79 302.62
Total expenses 579.19 1.27 580.46
Earnings before interest, tax, 463.75 (1.27) 462.48
depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA)
Finance costs 567.18 10.41 571.60
Depreciation and amortization 131.70
expense 131.70 -
Finance Income (8.78) - (8.78)
Loss before tax (226.35) (11.68) (238.03)
Tax expense:
-Current tax - - -
Loss for the period (226.35) {11.68) (238.03)
Other comprehensive income - - .
Items that will not be reclassified to - - -
profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit -
plans 0.48 0.48
Total Comprehensive Income for (226.35) (11.21) (237.56)
the period {(Comprising Profit
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)
Earnings per equity share: - - -
{1) Basic (45.73) - (47.99)
(2) Diluted (45.73) - (47.99)
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II.

111

Iv.

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1,2015 and March 31, 2016 and profit or loss for
the year ended March 31, 2016

Financial Assets

Under Indian GAAP, the Company had created provision for impairment of receivables consists
only in respect of specific amount for incurred losses, Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has
been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL). Due to ECL model, the Company
impaired its trade receivable by Rs. Nil on 1 April 2015 which has been eliminated against
retained earnings. Further during the year ended March 31, 2016 the Company has impaired the
receivables amounting to INR 0.79 lakhs,

Financial Liability

Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are amortised
upfront and charged to profit or loss for the period. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included
in the initial recognition amount of financial Hability and charged to profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

Under Indian GAAP, Redeemable Preference Shares are accounted as share capital. Under
INDAS these Redeemable Preference Shares are splited into debt and equity based on effective
interest rate.

Revaluation Reserves

Under the Indian GAAP the Company has revalued the property plant and equipment and was
carrying the revaluation reserve in the financial statements. During the transition to IND AS the
Company has elected to carry I[GAAP cost as deemed cost of property plant and equipment at the
date of transition to Ind AS and hence an increase of Rs. 1,500 lakhs (net of tax) was transferred
from Revaluation reserve to Retained earnings.

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which
focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12
requires entities fo account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and .
its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on
new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

Defined benefit liabilities

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-

employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost,

including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
[comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts

included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding

amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability] are recognised immediately in

the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI, Thus the

employee benefit cost is reduced by Rs. 0.48 lakhs and remeasurement gains/ losses on defined

benefit plans of Rs.0.48 lakhs has been recognized in the OCI.

Other comprehensive income

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCIL)
separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per
Ind AS. Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per
Ind AS.-01
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VII. Statement of cash flows

The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of

cash flows.

33, The Company’s holding company has confirmed that it shall provide continuing financial
support to the Company to pay off its debts, as and when they fall due. Accordingly, these
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

34. The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th

November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 are as provided in the Table below:
Rs. In lakhs

SBNs Other denomination notes Total
Closing cash in hand as on 08-11-2016 6.06 0.00 6.06
{(+) Permitted receipt , - 11.51 11.51
(-) Permitted Payments - 1.96 1.96
(-) Amount deposited in bank | 6.06 3.27 9.33
Closing cash in hand as on 30-12-2016 - 6.28 6.28

35 Segment Reporting

Hoteliering business is the company’s only business segment and domestic operations is the only

geographical segment and hence disclosure of segment wise information is not applicable under

Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”.

36. Supplementary Statutory Information

Rs. In lakhs
36.1 | Earnings in foreign currency March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Room, Restaurant and other services 21.63 24.52

21.63 24.52
36.2 | Expenditure in foreign currency (Accrual basis) March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016
Commission / Advertisement and business promotion 13.53 8.49
13.53 8.49
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37. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Mareh3l, | March31, | March31,
2017 2016 2015

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid Nil Nil Nil
to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of] Nil Nil Nil
the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in Nil Nil Nit
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the intcrest specified
under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,

2006.

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil Nil
each acconnting year; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in Nil Nil Nil
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprisefor the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
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